
GLEN ROCK ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Minutes of the June 13, 2013 Meeting 

 

 

The regular meeting of the Zoning Board of Adjustment was called to order by Chairman Bruce 

Beal at 7:30 p.m.  In attendance were Diane Herrlett, William Mitchell, Janet Chen, Denley 

Chew, Michael Peters and Robert Bourne.  Also in attendance was Andrew Kohut, Esq., Board 

Attorney.  Barbara Schineller and Marion Driscoll were absent.  The Secretary called the roll and 

read the Sunshine Statement from the Open Public Meetings Act.   

 

The Board reviewed the minutes of the May 1
st
 work session and May 9

th
 regular meeting.  A 

motion was made by Mr. Chew and seconded by Mr. Mitchell and passed unanimously with 

Mrs. Chen and Mr. Bourne both abstaining from the work session.       

 

Old Business: 

 

Block 143, Lot 17 

21 Delmar Avenue 

Applicant:  Mr. & Mrs. Sean Croake 

 

Memorializing resolution approving variances to construct a one story addition and two second 

story additions which will, if constructed, encroach into the required rear yard setback. 

 

A motion to approve the memorializing resolution of Mr. and Mrs. Sean Croake, 21 Delmar 

Avenue was made by Mrs. Chen and seconded by Mr. Mitchell.  The voice vote was as follows: 

 

AYES: Mrs. Herrlett, Mr. Mitchell, Mrs. Chen, Mr. Peters, Mr. Bourne, Mr. Beal 

NAYS: None 

 

Mr. Chew abstained from voting.  The resolution is attached to these minutes. 

 

Block 226, Lot 18 

101 Hillman Avenue 

Applicant:  Mr. Michael Kelly and Ms. Alison Chang 

 

Memorializing resolution approving variance for constructed pool patio which encroaches into 

the required side and rear yard setbacks. 

 

A motion to approve the memorializing resolution of Mr. Michael Kelly and Ms. Alison Chang, 

101 Hillman Avenue was made by Mrs. Chen and seconded by Mr. Chew.  The voice vote was 

as follows: 

 

AYES: Mrs. Herrlett, Mr. Mitchell, Mr. Peters, Mr. Bourne, Mr. Beal 

NAYS: None 

 

 



GLEN ROCK ZONING BOARD MINUTES 

Meeting of June 13, 2013 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

Mr. Mitchell and Mrs. Herrlett abstained from voting.  The resolution is attached to these 

minutes. 

 

New Business: 

 

Block 251, Lot 1 

59 Andover Terrace 

Applicant:  Mr. Rag Lulla 

 

Applicant proposes to construct second story addition, 2-two story additions and new front steps 

which will, if constructed, encroach into the required front yard and rear yard setbacks.  

Applicant seeks relief from Borough Ordinance 230-54(B), where a 50’ front yard setback is 

required, 41.63’ (steps) are proposed, a difference of 8.37’ and 230-54 (D), where a 30’ rear yard 

is required, 15.9’ (2
nd

 story addition) and 27.5’ (2 story rear addition) are proposed, a difference 

of 14.1’ and 2.5’ respectively and any other variances and waivers that may be required in 

connection with this application. 

 

Mrs. Herrlett recused herself from this application. 

 

Mr. Kohut swore in Mr. Perides.  Tsampicos Perides, Architect Designs, Harrington Park, NJ.  

Mr. Perides holds a Masters in architectural design from University of Pennsylvania.  Mr. 

Perides worked for a Montvale, NJ company for five years and the last six years has practiced as 

a sole practitioner doing 75% residential and 25% commercial work.  Mr. Perides is licensed in 

the State of New Jersey and Pennsylvania. 

 

The Board accepted Mr. Perides as an expert in his field. 

 

Mr. Perides commented that the applicant is proposing to add a level to an existing ranch-style 

home.  Two sections of the house (master suite and sun room) would be removed with the 

remainder of the project being a full second floor over the existing home.  The applicant is not 

proposing to deviate from the existing foundation; however, it does exacerbate an existing non-

conforming condition.   

 

The applicant will be continuing the rear yard variance with the second floor.  Additionally, there 

is an existing stone porch, which the stairs would be moved to the front to improve the front 

entrance. 

 

Mr. Perides noted with the removal of the master suite they would be eliminating a previously 

approved variance from 2002.   

 

 



GLEN ROCK ZONING BOARD MINUTES 

Meeting of June 13, 2013 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

Mr. Beal noted the property is on the corner of Beekman and Andover with the front of the house 

facing Andover.  The square footage is 14,900 square feet, which is slightly oversized for a 

corner lot. 

 

Mr. Perides agreed. 

 

Mr. Beal clarified the small room on the left side of the house will be removed with a two-story 

addition being added to the right side of the house, which will fill in an existing “notch”.  Mr. 

Beal added the two-story addition will also be in the back of the house; however the sunroom 

will be removed.   

 

Mr. Bourne clarified that the existing “crawl space” will be improved to a functioning basement, 

within the existing footprint of the house.   

 

Mr. Perides agreed stating the crawl space would be excavated with a new slab floor installed. 

 

Mr. Chew asked what the hardship for the variance would be. 

 

Mr. Perides believes the way the set back lines fall create a hardship.   

 

Mr. Perides distributed Exhibit A-1, which was entitled Coverage Calculations Plan.    

 

Mr. Perides explained the set back lines for the front and rear, noting the way they fall they cut 

through the middle of the house as it is built today.  The permitted buildable envelope on this lot 

is extremely restrictive.   

 

Mr. Kohut commented it appears that any work done to the existing house would require a 

variance. 

 

Mr. Perides stated that is correct. 

 

Mr. Beal noted if this house was built under the previous ordinances the rear yard setback would 

have been 50’. 

 

Mr. Beal asked if there were any questions from anyone in the audience for Mr. Perides. 

 

Erin Barron, 6 Chadwick Place – Ms. Barron asked if the house would be a two-story house or a 

two and a half story house, since the ground floor will be raised. 

 

Mr. Perides replied it will be a two story house.  The first floor will remain where it is with the 

crawl space being excavated down to create a basement. 



GLEN ROCK ZONING BOARD MINUTES 

Meeting of June 13, 2013 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

William Huisking, 65 Andover Terrace – Mr. Huisking lives to the right of the applicant’s house.  

Mr. Huisking asked if the chain-linked fence would be removed from his property and placed on 

the applicant’s property. 

 

Mr. Perides replied the fence would be removed. 

 

Mr. Mitchell asked how high the house will be with the addition of the second floor.   

 

Mr. Perides replied it will be 28’ from grade. 

 

Ms. Barron asked the height of the current house. 

 

Mr. Perides replied it is approximately 18’. 

 

Carmela Lawrence, 14 Chadwick Place – Ms. Lawrence asked if 28’ would be in keeping with 

the surrounding homes. 

 

Mr. Perides replied this height is in keeping with the neighborhood, adding ordinance allows the 

house height to be 32’. 

 

Ms. Lawrence asked if Mr. Perides could explain the front stairs. 

 

Mr. Perides replied currently the stairs go from right to left, as you look at the home.  Since the 

front door is being proposed to face Andover, the stairs would be moved to be lined up with the 

front door. 

 

There were no further questions from the Board or the audience for Mr. Perides. 

 

Mr. Beal asked if there were any comments from anyone. 

 

Mr. Kohut swore in Tim Barron, 6 Chadwick Place.  Mr. Barron commented due to the odd 

shapes of their two properties and the way they converge upon each other, at the closest point the 

two structures are only 27’ apart.  Mr. Barron has a deck (which was built by the previous 

owner) which is only 2.5’ from the property line (a variance was obtained).  Mr. Barron stated 

because both homes are ranch style homes the area does not feel claustrophobic; however, if a 

3,000 square foot, two-story home replaces what is currently there it will be extremely crowded.  

Mr. Barron added they will lose quite a bit of sunlight and visibly will only view the new house.  

Mr. Barron expressed concern with the impact of their quality of life.   

 

Mr. Beal agreed the “openness” of the property would diminish; however does not believe there 

would be a loss of sunlight. 



GLEN ROCK ZONING BOARD MINUTES 

Meeting of June 13, 2013 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

Mr. Kohut swore in Erin Barron, 6 Chadwick Place – Mrs. Barron believes as their family 

expands their options for renovations will be reduced.  Consequently, to sell their home she 

believes the resale value of their home would be severely impacted negatively.  Mrs. Barron 

presented five photographs, which were marked Exhibit P-1, showing the current view of 

landscaping and vegetation. 

 

Mr. Mitchell asked what would be a compromise to the applicant’s proposed renovation. 

 

Mrs. Barron replied to relocate the home or foundation so it is not so close to the property line. 

 

Mr. Perides replied the property shape makes it very restrictive as to what could be built, if the 

house were to be demolished.  Mr. Perides disagreed that the Barron’s property value would 

diminish and believes a new home would increase their property value. 

 

Mr. Beal estimated that 35-40% of the house is currently non-compliant. 

 

Mr. Kohut swore in Carmela Lawrence, 14 Chadwick Place.  Ms. Lawrence expressed concern 

with homes that are built too large for the property and believes this to be the case.  Ms. 

Lawrence added she believes to allow these variances only compound the issue.   

 

There were no further questions or comments from anyone in the audience. 

 

Mr. Perides concluded by saying if the Board were to grant the requested variances he believes it 

will greatly improve the property as well as the neighboring properties.  The allowable EGFAR 

for this property is 4,200 square feet, yet the applicant is proposing slightly less than 3,000 

square feet.  Mr. Perides believes the benefits of this renovation will greatly outweigh any 

detriments.   

 

Mr. Beal noted the end of the house that faces Beekman has only one window and it may be 

more aesthetically pleasing if additional windows were added. 

 

Mr. Perides commented windows can be added.   

 

Mr. Kohut commented this could be a condition if the application were approved. 

 

Mr. Beal asked what the plans are for the row of shrubs at the back of the property which create 

some privacy.   

 

Mr. Perides replied this has not been discussed with the applicant.   

 

 



GLEN ROCK ZONING BOARD MINUTES 

Meeting of June 13, 2013 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Mr. Beal asked if the application is denied the shrubs would remain and be maintained; however, 

if the application is approved and the shrubs need to be removed for the renovation new shrubs, 

of a significant size, would be planted to re-create the shielding which was lost. 

 

Mr. Perides agreed. 

 

Mr. Kohut asked how many arborvitaes are presently here. 

 

Mr. Perides replied there are approximately 20 shrubs. 

 

Mr. Kohut clarified that if the application is approved, 20 shrubs of equal height would be 

planted. 

 

Mr. Perides replied they would prefer to relocate the existing shrubs; however if need be new 

shrubs would be planted. 

 

There were no further questions or comments from anyone in the audience or the Board. 

 

A motion to deny the application of Mr. Rag Lulla, 59 Andover Terrace was made by Mr. Chew 

and seconded by Mr. Mitchell.  The voice vote was as follows: 

 

AYES:  Mr. Mitchell, Mrs. Chen, Mr. Chew 

NAYS:  Mr. Peters, Mr. Bourne, Mr. Beal  

 

The motion was approved and will be memorialized at next month’s meeting. 

 

As there were no further residents wishing to be heard, a motion to adjourn the meeting was 

made by Mr. Mitchell, seconded by Mrs. Chen and passed unanimously.  The meeting adjourned 

at 8:50 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Nancy Spiller 

Board Secretary 

 


